Finding Guide for the

Smith River Rancheria Archival Collection

March 31, 2002

Written and Edited by

Delia M. Sharpe and Albert W. Harris, PhD.

Project support and assistance

Joan Berman, Special Collections Librarian, Humboldt State University
Beni Bennett, Office Support staff, Center for Indian Community Development
Nancy Hill, Office Manager, Center for Indian Community Development
Center for Indian Community Development student assistants: David Carolyn, Sakisha Bailey,
Charlotte Kavanagh, Katie Mazie, Jennifer Smith, Bethaney Weber, and Brett Kormos

Project Contractor

Center for Indian Community Development Humboldt State University Arcata, CA 95521

Table of Contents

Research and Document Collection Overview	
Abbreviation Legend	6
Series 1: Record Group 75 – Bureau of Indian Affairs	
Sub Series 1: Smith River Rancheria Tribal Group Files	8
Sub Series 2: Elk Valley Rancheria Tribal Group Files	11
Sub Series 3: Land Correspondence	12
Sub Series 4: Probate Files	13
Series 2: Record Group 49	17
Series 3: The Diary of the Smith River Reservation: 1866-1868	17
Series 4: Proposed Land Purchases and Sale to Establish Smith River Rancheria	19
Series 5: Source Documents	20
Series 6: Smith River Rancheria Constitutions	22
Series 7: Tribal Resolutions	23
Series 8: Smith River Rancheria Meeting Minutes	
Series 9: Smith River Rancheria Codes and Ordinances	
Series 10: Smith River Rancheria Policies and Procedures	31
Series 11: Housing Authority	32
Series 12: Land Use Planning	33
Series 13: Demographic Data and Maps	35
Series 14: Tolowa Nation Petition	35

Series 15: Fort Terwah Journal

Series 16: Jane Hostotlas Trust Documents

RESTRICTED

Index and documents kept in a separate location and on a separate CD

Series: SWORP Collection 42

Research and Document Collection Overview

At the request of the Smith River Rancheria the Center for Indian Community Development at Humboldt State University worked with Dr. Albert Harris, professor of Government and Politics Department, Joan Berman, Library of Special Collections, and Delia M. Sharp, graduate student, to develop and collect historical records for a Smith River Rancheria tribal archival collection. The research and collection of historical documents was done at a variety of museums, libraries, and national archives. Ethnographic materials, school records, language documents, and museum pieces, such as baskets and fishing nets were not included as part of the historical records or materials collected for this project. Please note, however, that there are many language documents in the Southwestern Oregon Research Project (SWORP) collection included in this archive.

Several of the historical documents that were collected for this project are from the San Bruno National Archives Record Group 75 (Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) Records) and Record Group 49 (Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Records). All archival folders at the San Bruno National Archives relating specifically to the Tolowa, the Smith River Rancheria, and the Elk Valley Rancheria were copied. The records collected include minutes of past meetings, constitutions and by-laws, welfare records, and land assignment records. The majority of this information is found in Record Group 75. The search for project related documents required searching in for Hoopa, Yurok, and Round Valley records. There are also folders pertaining specifically to termination of the Elk Valley and Smith River Rancherias. Documents were found in the land correspondence files that pertain directly to the Smith River Rancheria and also to a person named Charlie Mack. In Record Group 49 (BLM Records) there were maps of Township Survey Plats from 1856 and 1907 that specifically reference the Smith River Indian Reservation. Several allotment records were found for "Smith River Indians" in a box containing records for allotments outside of any reservation. Approximately thirty probate records were also found.

The California State Parks Archeology Lab in Sacramento, California holds a report written by archeologist Edwin C. Bearss describing Del Norte and Humboldt Counties in reference to the indigenous population. The report is a compilation of many other archaeologists' work and is a secondary resource. Since this is not a primary resource, it was not included in the archive, but most of the information in the report pertaining to Smith River Rancheria and Tolowa peoples was found in primary documents elsewhere and has been included in the archive project. A hardcopy of the report has been provided to the Tribe through this project. The Humboldt State University Library also has a copy in its collection.

The Seattle branch of the National Archives and Records Administration (NARA) has a limited quantity of materials germane to this project. In general, the records held in Seattle do not pertain in even an indirect way to the Smith River Reservation/Rancheria or to the Tolowa tribal group. Most of the Record Group 75 information in the Seattle NARA branch refers to Oregon and Washington tribes. The few materials gathered from the Seattle NARA are in an archival

box labeled *References* and have been given to the Smith River Rancheria. Theses references are:

- 1) An <u>index</u> of microfilm reproductions of handwritten transcripts of communications sent by the Office of Indian Affairs (OIA), the office which preceded the BIA, during the March, 1824 January, 1882 period. The letters include instructions to superintendents, agents, and other field officials of the Office; reports to the secretary of War; acknowledgments of and replies to incoming letters, notices of appointment, and other communications concerning different aspects of Office operations. Most of the volumes are indexed by name of addressee, with some index entries for subjects.
- 2) An <u>index</u> of letters received by the OIA, 1824-1880. On 962 rolls of microfilm is reproduced most of the correspondence received by the central office of the OIA in this period. The records reproduced here consist of communications received from superintendents, agents, and other field officials of the Bureau. This correspondence relates to the general welfare of the Indians, health, education, subsistence agriculture, and areas such as allotments, claims, emigration and the like. An <u>index</u> of tribes and "more important bands " of Indians under the supervision of agencies and superintendencies during the years 1824-1880, with the jurisdictional headings under which correspondence concerning them is filed.
- 3) Final Rolls of the Confederated Tribes of the Grand Rhone Community, April 1956.
- 4) Final Rolls of the Confederated Tribes of the Siletz Indians, July 1956.

The Phoebe Hearst Museum on the UC Berkeley campus provided a listing of everything they had regarding Smith River, Elk Valley, Del Norte County, and Tolowa. Their collection includes artifacts such as baskets and fishing nets. Copies of the Hearst Museum materials were not included in for this archive, but the list has been given to the Tribe and is in a box labeled *References*.

The Bancroft Library is the archeology library on the UC Berkeley campus. The key item of interest found here was the Diary of the Smith River Rancheria for the years 1866-1868. It was given to the Bancroft Library by Thomas Peacock, and Al Logan Slagle also has a copy. A copy of the diary has been included in the archives project.

Abbreviations

Accessions

NARA – SB – refers to the National Archive Records Administration in San Bruno, CA

SRR – refers to the Smith River Rancheria

CILS – refers to the California Indian Legal Services in Eureka, CA

Bancroft – refers to the Bancroft library on the Berkeley campus

SWORP – refers to the Southwest Oregon Research Project, which is housed in the special

collection section of the University of Oregon library

Box, Folder, and CD Titles

Titles in the finding guide exactly match the titles on folders and boxes. However, some of these titles have been abbreviated on the CDs due to computer limitations on title lengths. When a title was abbreviated on a CD, it was changed as little as possible so that it could be matched to the finding guide, to the boxes, and to the folders.

Series 1: Record Group 75 – Bureau of Indian Affairs Administrative History

An Office of Indian Affairs was established in 1824 within the War Department, which had exercised jurisdiction over relations with Indian tribes since the formation of the Federal Government. The Office operated informally within the War Department until Congress authorized the appointment of a Commissioner of Indian Affairs in 1832. The Office was transferred to the Department of the Interior in 1849. Although commonly called the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA), it was not officially designated that until 1947.

The Bureau is responsible for most of the Federal Government's relations with the tribes of Indians that it recognizes. Some groups of Indians, particularly in the Eastern States, have never received official recognition, and other groups ceased to function as cohesive tribes before the establishment of the Federal Government in 1789. The Bureau has only exercised responsibility for Indians living on a recognized reservation or who maintained an affiliation with a recognized tribe. Many persons of Indian descent are not mentioned in any of the Bureau's records because they severed all connection with any tribe.

The Bureau's programs have had an impact on virtually every aspect of Indian life including education, health, land ownership, financial affairs, employment, and legal rights. In 1931, the Bureau assumed jurisdiction over the Indians and Eskimos of Alaska from the Alaska Division of the Office of Education, which had been established in 1885 to administer education and health programs for the natives of Alaska. In 1955, most of the Bureau's health activities, including the operation of Indian Hospitals, were transferred to the Public Health Service.

When it was created in 1824, the Bureau inherited a well-established system of agencies, each of which was responsible for all relations with one or more tribes. Many of these agencies were subordinate to a superintendency which had general responsibility for Indian affairs in a territory or other geographical area. Although there were numerous changes in agency designations and jurisdictions, this basic organizational structure remained unchanged until superintendencies were abolished in the 1870's and all agents began reporting directly to the Bureau headquarters in Washington, DC. In 1947, area offices were established to exercise supervisory control over agencies and other administrative units (such as schools or irrigation districts) within specific geographic regions.

In addition to the agents who were responsible for the day-to-day implementation of Indian policy, the Bureau often sent officials into the field for special purposes. These included treaty commissioners, inspectors, purchasing and disbursing agents, enrolling and allotting agents, and education specialists.

Sub Series 1: Smith River Rancheria Tribal Group Files

These records pertain to all aspects of administration and operation of agencies for the Smith River Rancheria, such as census, agricultural extension projects, enrollment, construction of homes and roads, emergency relief programs conducted in the 1930's, home demonstration programs, health care programs, irrigation and land management activities, and law enforcement activities.

Box 1 Located on: CD 1A Box 2 Located on: CD 1B

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Smith River General File 1951-1959

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: May 4, 1951- November 10, 1959

Description: This folder contains both special and regular meeting minutes of the Smith River Rancheria. Topics for the meeting minutes include the land code for the Rancheria, land use permits for assignments, lists of assignments, timber sales, land improvements, the cemetery, and the water system.

Folder 2: Smith River General File 1959-1960 (folder 1 of 2)

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: January 27, 1960 - December 12, 1960

Description: This folder contains information regarding the plan for the distribution of assets for the Smith River Rancheria, the plan itself, and the revised plan. Also included in this folder is correspondence between the BIA and the Smith River Rancheria regarding the Indian cemetery on the Smith River Rancheria.

Folder 3: Smith River General File 1959-1960 (folder 2 of 2)

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: September 17, 1958 - February 1, 1960

Description: This folder contains additional information regarding the cemetery on the Smith River Rancheria. It also contains additional information on the distribution of assets, including various maps.

Folder 4: Smith River General File 1960-1964

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: February 8, 1960 - August 20, 1964

Description: This folder contains correspondence between the BIA and the Smith River Rancheria concerning the water system and irrigation.

Folder 5: Smith River Constitutions and By-laws

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: June 10, 1955 – January 13, 1960

Description: This folder contains information regarding the deletion of Article III, 4(a) of the Smith River Constitution and By-laws. This article provides that Indian women of the Smith River Rancheria Tribe who marry non-Indians shall lose their membership rights.

Folder 6: Annual Narrative and Statistical Reports from BIA Field Jurisdictions 1907-1938

Accn: NARA-SB-RG 75 Date: September 1937

Description: This folder contains the annual narrative and statistical report from the Hoopa Valley Agency, which includes Smith River Rancheria census information for 1934.

Box 2 contains:

Folder 1: Smith River Howonquet Indian Council Meeting Minutes October1952-1959

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: October 16, 1952 - December 11, 1959

Description: This folder contains both special and regular meeting minutes of the Howonquet Indian Council. Examples of topics include roads, water, shaker church, land improvements, and land assignments.

Folder 2: Smith River-Howonquet Indian Council Meeting Minutes and Resolutions 1957-1965

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: December 28, 1956 - July 31, 1964

Description: This folder contains both special and regular meeting minutes of the Howonquet Indian Council. Most minutes pertain to the water and irrigation system. Other topics include community property, land improvements, power lines, logging on the Rancheria beach, and a resolution that deletes Article III B, 4(a), which provides that Indian women of the Smith River Rancheria Tribe who marry non-Indians shall lose their membership rights.

Folder 3: Land Code of the Howonquet Indian Council

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: November 13, 1952 - May 19, 1960

Description: This folder contains information on the Land Code of the Smith River Rancheria Tribe. It also discusses individual assignments.

Folder 4: Howonquet Community Association

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: April 12, 1961 - December 23, 1970

Description: Included in this folder are the correspondence between the Smith River Rancheria and the BIA regarding the Articles of Association of Nonprofit Association. The actual articles are also includes along with various maps of the Rancheria.

Folder 5: Del Norte Indian Welfare Association

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: November 17, 1952 - June 29, 1964

Description: Included in this folder are meeting minutes, constitutions, and resolutions of the Del Norte Indian Welfare Association. Examples of topics include elections, membership, and maintenance of cultural heritage.

Folder 6: Smith River Rancheria Termination 1958-1977

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: June 28, 1961 - December 6, 1977

Description: This folder includes the correspondence between the BIA and the Smith River Rancheria in relation to termination of the Rancheria. Topics include distributions plans, community property, shaker church, and determining heirs.

Folder 6A: Smith River Rancheria Termination 1958-1977, cont'd

Sub Series 2: Elk Valley Rancheria Tribal Group Files

These records pertain to all aspects of administration and operation of agencies for the Elk Valley Rancheria, such as agricultural extension projects, enrollment, construction of homes and roads, emergency relief programs conducted in the 1930's, home demonstration programs, health care programs, irrigation and land management activities, and law enforcement activities.

Box 3 Located on: CD 1C

Box 3 contains:

Folder 1: Crescent City Rancheria 1951-1960

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: May 28, 1951 – October 28, 1960

Description: This folder contains correspondence between the BIA and the Elk Valley Rancheria regarding the establishment of the land code. Also included are correspondence between the BIA and the Elk Valley Rancheria pertaining to the construction of a water system on the Crescent City Rancheria. Additionally, there is correspondence regarding the construction of a road (Elk Valley Project S-25). Other topics included in this folder are constitution, termination, and assignment schedules, and power lines.

Folder 2: Elk Valley 451-Project S025

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: July 1954

Description: This folder contains information pertaining to the construction of roads (Elk Valley Project S-25). It also contains the census roll for the Crescent City Rancheria of Hoopa Valley from 1934.

Folder 3: Elk Valley Rancheria Patents on Lands

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: October 11, 1909- July 12, 1910

Description: This folder contains 4 handwritten certified pages pertaining to a land purchase made by G. A. Herb.

Folder 4: Elk Valley Rancheria Termination 1934-1977

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1934 - 1977

Description: This folder contains the information pertaining to the termination of the Elk Valley Rancheria. There is also documentation concerning the probate file of Nellie Jackson.

Sub Series 3: Land Correspondence

These records pertain to correspondence between individuals and the Bureau of Indian Affairs concerning land rights.

Box 4 Located on: 1D

Box 4 contains:

Folder 1: Correspondence Between Commissioner and Superintendent 1920

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: April 27, 1920 – July 29, 1920

Description: The records in this folder pertain to the condition of the Smith River Indians and the need for them to be removed to the Hoopa Valley Reservation.

Folder 2: Land Correspondence 1908-1918

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916

Description: This folder contains two letters written on behalf of Henry White

(Blind Henry) in 1916, requesting an allotment.

Folder 3: Land Correspondence 1894-1926 – Charlie Mack

Accn: NARA - SB - RG 75

Date: 1894 - 1918

Description: This folder contains letters written to the BIA requesting an allotment for Charlie Mack, described as a Klamath Indian living in Requa.

Folder 4: Land Correspondence – Lucy Bob

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: August 21, 1916

Description: This folder contains a one page letter written by the tax collector of

Del Norte County, concerning the land of Lucy Bob.

Sub Series 4: Probate Files

Probate files contain records such as the distribution of estates, hearing minutes, records regarding guardianships, and wills. Probate records can give the historian invaluable information. For example, genealogists value the lists of heirs and divisees that indicate familial relationships. People researching material culture can learn much from household inventories. Historians also find useful information in real estate inventories.

Box 5 Located on: CD 1E Box 6 Located on: CD 1F

Box 5 contains:

Folder 1: Bob, Harry 19 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: October 29, 1956 - July 8, 1958

Description: unallotted - died May 11, 1950

Folder 2: Bob, Longhair 42 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75 Date: July 13, 1916 - 1944

Description: Allottee number 40 of Smith River Tribe – died 1903

Folder 3: Bob, Longhair 7 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1944

Description: Allottee number 40 of Smith River Tribe – died 1903

Folder 4: Charley, Griffin 21 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1932 - 1939

Description: unallotted – died December 12, 1932

Folder 5: Charley, Maggie 32 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1960 - 1963

Description: unallotted of the Karuk Tribe – died January 12, 1960

Folder 6: Charley, Mike 37 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1936- 1944

Description: allottee number 143 of Hoopa Valley – died July 17, 1927

Folder 7: Crescent, Charlie 7 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1944

Description: allottee number 235-H of the Lower Klamath River Tribe – died

1916

Folder 8: Crescent, Charlie 39 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1956

Description: allottee number 235-H of Hoopa Valley – died July 17, 1927

Folder 9: Crescent, Mary 42 pages

Accn: NARA - SB - RG 75

Date: 1922 - 1944

Description: allottee 236-H of Klamath River Tribe – died March 1922

Folder 10: Crescent, Peter 5 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1908 -1944

Description: allottee number 240-H of Lower Klamath Tribe – died 1908

Folder 11: Crescent, Peter 22 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1908 -1944

Description: allottee number 240-H of Lower Klamath Tribe – died 1908

Folder 12: Frank, Henry 2 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1915

Description: allottee number 30 of Smith River Tribe – died August 21, 1915

Folder 13: Frank, Sarah 35 pages

Accn: NARA - SB - RG 75

Date: 1949 -1984

Description: allottee number 212-T of Hoopa – died September 16, 1949

Folder 14: George, Lydia Bigby 50 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1965 -1967

Description: unallotted – died November 8, 1965 Folder 15: Green, John 19 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1917 -1920

Description: homesteader 2300 of Pitt River Tribe – died June 5, 1917

Folder 16: Hostler, Elmer 30 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1953

Description: allottee 115 of Hoopa - died January 1, 1952

Folder 17: Hostler, Laura 20 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: May 10, 1946 – June 6, 1947

Description: allottee 107-H of Hoopa – died June, 1946

Folder 18: James, Jasper 21 pages

Accn: NARA - SB - RG 75

Date: 1912 -1916

Description: allottee 27-T of Hoopa – died April 27, 1912

Folder 19: James, Jasper 30 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1952 - 1954

Description: unallotted Hoopa – died April 28, 1952

Folder 20: James, Percy 22 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1943 - 1943

Description: unallotted of the Smith River Tribe – died January 11, 1943

Folder 21: James, Richard 13 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1939 - 1954

Description: allottee number 129-T of the Yurok Tribe – died March 31, 1939

Folder 22: Oscar, Lewis Benjamin 37 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1949 - 1969

Description: unallotted of the Yurok Tribe – died August 29, 1949

Folder 23: Oscar, Lewis Benjamin 14 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1949-1969

Description: unallotted of the Yurok Tribe – died August 29, 1949

Folder 24: Lopez, Robert 32 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1962-1964

Description: unallotted of the Smith River Tribe – died November 22, 1962

Folder 25: Pete, Gorham 26 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1936-1941

Description: unallotted of the Hoopa Tribe – died May 10, 1936

Box 6 contains:

Folder 1: Pete, William 23 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1955 - 1956

Description: unallotted of the Smith River Tribe – died July 10, 1955

Folder 2: Pete, William 25 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1937 - 1941

Description: unalloted of the Smith River Tribe – died died June 11, 1937

Folder 3: Pilgrim, Floyd H. 17 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1944 - 1954

Description: unallotted of the Yurok Tribe – died July 29, 1944

Folder 4: Roberts, Bob 43 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1940 - 1944

Description: allottee 185-T of the Yurok Tribe – died November 11, 1940

Folder 5: Roberts, Bob 102 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1937 - 1976

Description: allottee 52-T and 404-T of Hoopa – died September 26, 1937

Folder 6: Scott, Hank 14 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1937 - 1939

Description: unallotted – father of Smith River and mother of Klamath Tribe –

died July 6, 1937

Folder 7: Scott, Willie 26 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1944

Description: allottee 46-non-res. of the Klamath Tribe – died 1916

Folder 8: Scott, Willie 9 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1944

Description: allottee 46 – non-res. of the Klamath Tribe – died 1916

Folder 9: Whipple, Ida Bob 6 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1916 - 1944

Description: allotte number R&R-42 of the Smith River Tribe – died 1916

Folder 10: Wauteen, Mary 50 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1924 - 1958

Description: allottee 53-H of the Lower Klamath River Tribe – died July 13,

1924

Folder 11: White, Clara Jim James 30 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1945 - 1957

Description: unallotted of the Smith River Tribe – died January 22, 1945

Folder 12: White, Johnnie 39 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1954 - 1957

Description: unallotted of the Yurok Tribe – died April 16, 1954

Folder 13: White, Julia 26 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1923 -1944

Description: unallotted of the Lower Klamath Tribe – died April 7, 1923

Folder 14: Winton, Paul Sr. 60 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1948-1954

Description: unallotted of the Smith River Tribe – died May 28, 1948

Folder 15: Woodbury, John 27 pages

Accn: NARA - SB - RG 75

Date: 1930 - 1935

Description: unallotted of the Klamath Tribe – died October 4, 1930

Folder 16: Woodbury, John 29 pages

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 75

Date: 1904 - 1944

Description: allottee number 43 of the Smith River Tribe – died 1904

Series 2: Record Group 49

Box 1 Located on: CD 2A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Township Survey Plats (maps)

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 49

Date: various dates from 1820 - 1950

Description: Seven survey plats (maps) for Township 16-17 North, Range 1 West,

of Humboldt Meridian, CA

Folder 2: Register of Indian Allotments Outside of Reservations 1899-1912

Accn: NARA – SB – RG 49

Date: 1892

Description: These are copies of the register of Indian Allotment Applications made at the Land Office at Humboldt, California. They provide information such as date of allotment, name of tribe, name of head of family or applicant, name of child, description of land (coordinates), and whether or not a patent was given for the land.

Series 3: The Diary of the Smith River Reservation: 1866-1868

"The only records of the daily activates of known Tolowas from truly contemporary sources are in the daily log book of the Smith River Rancheria, a rare and important document, called <u>The Smith River Indian Reservation: 1866-1868.</u> Other tribes were put on the reservation at this time, including Wiyots and Takilmas. Thomas Peacock, the editor of the Del Norte Triplicate, wrote an introduction to this unpublished manuscript:

The following is from a diary kept of the accounts of the Smith River Indian Reservation Ranch. The daily entries into the diary are made by many different persons, none identified. The original diary is in the possession of Marian Peacock Beasley. Many years ago someone started to use it as a scrap book—and about the first 50 pages are covered with pasted-in-news items, etc. of various sorts. The balance I have had xeroxed.

"Peacock presented these materials to Loren Bommelyn, Tolowa, a member of the Del Norte Historical Society, realizing its historical significance. It consists of pages numbered 39 to 216. This manuscript gives the only available record of daily life in any period of Tolowa life since conquest, and only exists because of the reservation experience. The aims of the federal government regarding the surviving Tolowas was very clear here: education in agriculture and simple handicrafts, animal husbandry and carpentry, as well as mechanical skills, to supply the reservation, and then the local whites, with a source of cheap labor. The Tolowa reservation lasted only a few years.

"The Smith River Reservation annuals are very specific in supplying daily details of work, weather, arrivals, and departures of white workers or supervisors of the Indians charges, births, deaths, and sickness among the people and livestock, trips to and from Crescent City,

accusations of witchcraft and petty offenses among the Tolowas on the Reservation, recollections of parties, and enumerations of harvests of the produce and livestock on the Reservation. These are unimaginative notes and suggest a very settled lifestyle, with work every day except for Sundays, in good weather. There seemed to have been little effort to proselytize the Tolowas into Christian churches at this time, little criminality, and little opportunity to drink or availability of alcohol, at least on the Reserve. The chroniclers amused themselves with making up cute little epithets to apply to the Indians: 'dusky virgins,' 'unbleached Americans,' in addition to the usual 'bucks and does,' 'redskins and squaws.'

"What follows, except in that the text is wrapped – around instead of being confined to line-by-line reproduction, is an exact transcription of the document. I have numbered the pages as indicated in the manuscript, indicated marginal notes in the brackets, preserved the spellings of the writers as much as possible, as well as the often-idiosyncratic punctuations one might expect in an informal diary of this kind. However, the meanings are almost always facially evident."

--Al Logan Slage

Box 1 Located on: CD 3A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Introductory material

Accn: Bancroft Library

Folder 2: Diary Entries from June 26, 1866-April 4, 1867

Acen: Bancroft Library

Folder 3: Diary Entries from April 5, 1867-August 12, 1867

Accn: Bancroft Library

Folder 4: Diary Entries from August 13, 1867 – December 22, 1867

Accn: Bancroft Library

Folder 5: Diary Entries from December 23, 1867 – June 22, 1868

Accn: Bancroft Library

Series 4: Proposed Land Purchases and Sale to Establish Smith River Rancheria

Box 1 Located on: CD 4A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Introductory Material

Accn: CILS

Date: December 16, 1996

Description: Background Study. The purpose of the study was to write a brief history of the Smith River Rancheria, develop a demographic profile of the Rancheria membership, conduct a survey of 428 Rancheria households, and to catalog the Rancheria's physical assets. Study findings included the following information: a) most members wish to increase the land base of the Rancheria; b) the membership want to develop a stronger physical infrastructure; c) most members do not have a working knowledge of Tolowa culture and language.

Folder 2: Non-Indian Claims Against U.S. for Indian Occupancy Rent

Accn: CILS Date: 1909-1920

Description: Included here is correspondence between BIA personnel and non-Indians in the coastal northern California region. The non-Indians claimed they were due compensation from the U.S. for the time Indians resided on land of which the non-Indians claimed ownership. These claims were disputed by the BIA.

Folder 3: Land Purchase Authorization

Accn: CILS Date: 1908

Description: The folder is comprised mostly of correspondence between BIA officials in the northern California region and the Washington office of the BIA. The matter discussed was principally the advisability and legality of the potential purchase of lands in the Smith River area (particularly the Cutler-Griffen tract and the William Westbrook tract).

Folder 4: Protests of Smith River Indian Encampments at Mouth of Smith River

Accn: CILS Date: 1907

Description: The information herein concerns the protests of Catherine Fender against the presence of Smith River Indians on land owned by Catherine Fender. Catherine Fender had leased part of her land to a wholesale fish dealer. A portion of the Indians encamped on the site were there because of employment offered by the fish dealer.

Folder 5: Notarized Statements of "No Interest of Sale" of lands for SRR

Accn: CILS Date: 1907

Description: This folder's information pertains to notarized statements by landholders nearby or adjacent to the Cutler-Griffen tract in Del Norte County. These depositions were made to register no interest in the sale of land owned by those making the statements. The statements include evaluations regarding the condition of the Cutler-Griffen tract.

Folder 6: Protests of Proposed Land Sale for SRR

Accn: CILS Date: 1907

Description: Correspondence between OIA personnel in Washington, D.C., Special Agent Kelsey, and a Superior Court Judge of Del Norte County (John Childs). This correspondence details why certain individuals were against the purchase of the Griffen-Cutler tract of land (i.e., the price was too high, or the land was not suitable for cultivation).

Series 5: Source Documents

Box 1 Located on: CD 5A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Tribal-State Compact

Accn: CILS

Date: December 1999

Description: This legal document is an agreement between the State of California and the Smith River Rancheria (the Tribe) providing a statutory basis for Class III gaming on tribal lands. It is a government-to-government agreement derived from the 1988 Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA). The Compact's Preamble states that the allowance of gaming operations will promote tribal government, economic development, and self-sufficiency. The State of California entered into this Compact in part to encourage the termination of pending "bad faith" litigation between the Tribe and the State and to promote tribal-state cooperation.

Folder 2: Review of Trust Acquisition for SRR Individual Grant Deed

Accn: CILS

Date: October 2000

Description: This folder contains a determination by the BIA regarding whether certain parcels of land adjacent to or nearby the Smith River Rancheria, under consideration for trust acquisition by the Rancheria, qualify as on-reservation acquisitions under 25 CFR 151. The issue is whether the BIA accepts that the parcels in question fall within the 1993 Tribal Constitution's authority and jurisdiction description. Included in the folder are plat maps of the parcels in question.

Folder 3: 1986 Tillie Hardwick v. USA: Stipulation for Judgement

Accn: CILS

Date: October 1996

Description: The decision stemming from Tillie Hardwick determined that the Smith River and Elk Valley Rancherias were never lawfully terminated under the 1958 California Rancheria Act, Pub. L. 85-671, 72 Stat. 69 (as amended in 1964, 78 Stat. 390) because sec. 3 of the Act has provisions which were never fulfilled prior to the conveyance of deeds to the Rancheria Parcels. The remedy provided by U.S. Dist. Ct. for Northern Calif. was to restore the original boundaries of the plaintiff rancherias, and to declare all land within those restored boundaries to be Indian Country.

Folder 4: 1958 Plan for Distribution of SRR Assets

Accn: CILS

Date: October 1958

Description: This Plan submitted to the BIA, pursuant to Public Law 85-671, was a request for the distribution of the real estate constituting the territory of the Smith River Rancheria, subsequent to the termination of the Rancheria's Federal trusteeship status, as requested by "the Indians of the Smith River Rancheria." Including in the Plan is a request for the conveyance of unrestricted legal title of the lands constituting the Rancheria to individual Indians (distributees) or "legal entity" as itemized and described in the Plan. The Plan was prepared by the Area Director for the BIA, Sacramento Area Office, pursuant to the authority delegated on February 26, 1959, after consultation with the Indians of Smith River Rancheria.

Folder 5: Federal Acknowledgement of Tolowa Nation Petition

Accn: CILS

Date: October 1994

Description: The folder consists of correspondence between the Honwonquet Indian Council of the Smith River Rancheria and the BIA regarding the Tolowa Nation petition, where the Council asks that the BIA to not accept the petition. Included is Council Resolution 94-41 which declares the intent of the petitioners to be to usurp the authority of the Tolowa Rancherias.

Folder 6: Judicial Services Agreement

Accn: CILS

Date: November 2001

Description: This Agreement delineates what services the Northwest Intertribal Court System (NICS) agrees to perform for the Smith River Rancheria, as well as the responsibilities accepted by Smith River as part of the Agreement.

Folder 7: Federal Register: Near Reservation Designation

Accn: CILS

Date: May 16, 2000

Description: This is a Federal Register notice of the near-reservation designations for certain Indian tribal entities within the states of California (including Smith River) and Oregon recognized as eligible to receive services from the BIA.

Folder 8: Common Use Agreement

Accn: CILS Date: 4/1978

Description: This is an Agreement between the Honwonquet Community Association and the Smith River Community Services District, describing certain rights of way and easements shared by the two parties. The Agreement specifies each party's recognition and acknowledgment of their respective responsibilities and obligations regarding shared use of particular rights of way and easements.

Series 6: Smith River Rancheria Constitutions

Box 1 Located on: CD 6A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: 1993 Constitution of SRR

Accn: CILS Date: 12/93

Description: This document, stamped "outdated," is a revised Constitution of the Smith River Rancheria. Adopted at a regular Council meeting by a vote of 4 to 0 (1 abstention). The document is unsigned.

Folder 2: 1987 Constitution of Tolowa Indians of SRR

Accn: CILS Date: 1987

Description: Provided by Elaine Moorehead, missing pages 10 and 11. The

document is unsigned.

Folder 3: 1987 Constitution of Howonquet Indian Council of SRR.

Accn: CILS Date: 1987

Description: This document was provided by the BIA in 2001. The document is

unsigned.

Folder 4: Undated Constitution of Smith River Rancheria

Accn: CILS
Date: Unknown

Description: This document is stamped "outdated." The document is unsigned.

Folder 5: Undated Constitution of Howonquet Indian Council of SRR

Accn: CILS Date: 7/1987

Description: This document is stamped "outdated." The document is unsigned; it

bears a handwritten note indicating a tribal vote of approval.

Series 7: Tribal Resolutions

Box 1 Located on: CD 7A Box 2 Located on: CD 7B Box 3 Located on: CD 7C Box 4 Located on: CD 7D

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: 1985 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1985

Folder 2: 1986 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1986

Folder 3: 1987 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January-February 1987

Folder 4: 1988 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1988

Folder 5: 1989 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1989

Folder 6: 1990 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1990

Folder 7: 1991 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1991

Box 2 contains:

Folder 1: 1992 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1992

Folder 2: 1993 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1993

Box 3 contains:

Folder 1: 1994 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1994

Folder 2: 1995 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1995

Box 4 contains:

Folder 1: 1996 Resolutions

Accn: SRR

Date: January – December 1996

Series 8: Smith River Rancheria Meeting Minutes

This section contains Smith River Rancheria Tribal meeting minutes only for 1985-1996. Fewer than twelve monthly meetings were archived for some of these years. Meeting minutes for earlier years can be found in Series One, sub-series one.

Box 1	Located on:	CD 8A
Box 2	Located on:	CD 8B
Box 3	Located on:	CD 8C
Box 4	Located on:	CD 8D
Box 5	Located on:	CD 8E
Box 6	Located on:	CD 8F
Box 7	Located on:	CD 8G
Box 8	Located on:	CD 8H
Box 9	Located on:	CD 8I
Box 10	Located on:	CD 8J
Box 11	Located on:	CD 8K
Box 12	Located on:	CD 8L

Box 1 contains: 1985 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: October

Accn: SRR

Box 2 contains: 1986 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: November

Accn: SRR

Box 3 contains: 1987 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: August

Accn: SRR

Accii. Sixix

Folder 8: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: December

Accn: SRR

Box 4 contains: 1988 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Folder 8: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: December

Accn: SRR

Box 5 contains: 1989 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 6 contains: 1990 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 7 contains: 1991 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 8 contains: 1992 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 9 contains: 1993 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Box 10 contains: 1994 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 11 contains: 1995 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: May

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: September

Folder 10: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 12: December

Accn: SRR

Box 12 contains: 1996 Meeting Minutes

Folder 1: January

Accn: SRR

Folder 2: February

Accn: SRR

Folder 3: March

Accn: SRR

Folder 4: April

Accn: SRR

Folder 5: June

Accn: SRR

Folder 6: July

Accn: SRR

Folder 7: August

Accn: SRR

Folder 8: September

Accn: SRR

Folder 9: October

Accn: SRR

Folder 10: November

Accn: SRR

Folder 11: December

Series 9: Smith River Rancheria Codes and Ordinances

Box 1 Located on: CD 9A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Codes and Ordinances

Accn: SRR

Date: Various 1989 - 1996

Description:

- 1. No date Water Pollutant Discharge Prohibition
- 2. No date Confidentiality Ordinance
- 3. 2-27-96 No. 96-04 Ordinance on Sales Tax
- 4. 3-9-93 No. 1993 Election Ordinance
- 5. 5-14-91 No. 1991 Enrollment Ordinance
- 6. 5-20-89 No. 89-01 Temporary Moratorium on Construction until Zoning Ordinance can be adopted

Series 10: Smith River Rancheria Policies and Procedures

Box 1 Located on: CD 10A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Employee Handbook on Personnel Policy and Procedures

Accn: CILS

Date: Issued: May 1, 1996 Revised: February 11, 1997

Description: This document is designed to provide Rancheria employees information on a wide range of employment matters. These include areas such as benefit programs, working conditions, leaves of absence, and employee work rules.

Folder 2: Tribal Rehabilitation Policy

Accn: CILS
Date: undated

Description: Smith River Rancheria policy for all housing rehabilitation.

Folder 3: Travel and Per Diem Policy

Accn: CILS Date: undated

Description: This statement of policy includes information on the submission of travel claims, per diem and meal schedules, and commercial automobile rental.

Folder 4: Fiscal Policies and Procedures Manual

Accn: CILS

Date: May 28, 1986

Description: This document serves as a manual for Rancheria accounting

standards, procedures, and controls.

Folder 5: Grievance Procedures

Accn: CILS

Date: July 18, 1995

Description: The information included here details the steps to be taken to file a grievance with the Rancheria. It is a three step procedure involving a Grievance Committee, the Tribal Administrator, and the Tribal Council.

Folder 6: Records Management Manual

Accn: CILS

Date: undated

Description: This document describes how the Rancheria has housed,

classified, and filed its organizational records.

Folder 7: 1997 Casino Employee Handbook

Accn: CILS

Date: October 1, 1997

Description: The Handbook provides a range of information, including that pertaining to casino employees' personnel records, benefits, working conditions, and conduct.

Folder 8: 1999 Casino Employee Handbook

Accn: CILS

Date: January 1, 1999

Description: This later version of the Handbook provides basically the same range of information as the earlier version, including that pertaining to casino employees' personnel records, benefits, working condition, and conduct.

Series 11: Housing Authority

Box 1 Located on: CD 11A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Charter of Smith River Reservation Housing Authority

Accn: CILS

Date: July 11, 1989

Description: Included in this folder is the 1989 Charter of the Housing Authority which describes the structure, management, and operations of the Authority. Also included is a Smith River Rancheria Resolution (No. 21-28) rescinding the 1989 Charter. The Resolution was passed June 25, 2001 (5 to 0, with 1 abstention).

Folder 2: Tribal Housing Plan

Accn: CILS Date: 7/92

Description: The Plan (prepared by the Honwonquet Indian Council) was a proposal to the BIA to gain funding for an accelerated housing rehabilitation

program.

Folder 3: Subdivision Plans and Maps

Accn: CILS Date: 9/91

Description: This folder contains documents establishing the conveyance of certain properties from the Smith River Rancheria, to Del Norte County, and to Indians having vested rights in law, such properties being particular streets and roads. These documents include: a Certificate of Acceptance signed by the Del Norte County Clerk; a Planning Commission Approval signed by the Chairman of the Commission; a county Auditor's Certificate signed by the Auditor; signed Certificates by the Del Norte Engineer and Surveyor; and an Affidavit signed by the Sacramento Area Director of the BIA. All of these documents are dated July, 1961. Also included are engineering maps of certain Smith River Rancheria subdivisions. These maps are all dated June, 1961.

Folder 4: Common Use Agreement

Accn: CILS Date: 4/78

Description: Contained in this folder is a Consent to Common Use Agreement between the Honwonquet Community Association and the Smith River Community Services District. The Agreement releases the Association from certain condemnation actions earlier filed by the District. The Agreement expresses the obligations of both the Association and the District regarding the common use of certain easements. Also included is a Resolution of the Smith River Community Services District authorizing the latter's Board of directors to sign the Agreement.

Series 12: Land Use Planning

Box 1 Located on: CD 12A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Correspondence between BIA and Del Norte County

Accn: CILS Date: 1993

Description: This folder contains correspondence between and among the BIA in Washington, D.C., the Sacramento Area Office, and the Del Norte County Board of Supervisors. The matter under discussion is the Supervisors desire to participate in all land use planning or decision-making that could possibly affect the citizens or tax base of Del Norte County.

Folder 2: Del Norte City Planning Commission Appeal

Accn: CILS Date: 1993

Description: The documents contained herein include an appeal to the Board of Supervisors of a Del Norte Planning Commission action to allow development of a parcel residing within the exterior boundaries of the Smith River Rancheria. The appeal takes the position that the parcel is not suited for this development, which would include a septic system, because of the high ground water level on the

parcel and surrounding areas. The appeal contends that adequate testing for septic system insertion has not been conducted.

Also included in the file is a Coastal Planning Commission determination regarding the construction of three replacement homes, and three new homes on parcels sited within the boundaries of the Smith River Rancheria. The determination finds that the planned construction does not violate the Federal Consistency Provisions of the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 as amended by the California Coastal Commission.

Folder 3: Letter to Del Norte County from Dr. Block

Accn: CILS

Date: September 29, 1992

Description: This folder contains a letter from William Roop, consulting archaeologist, to the Del Norte County Planning Commission, regarding a prehistoric archaeological site on a parcel of land between Prince Island Court and Island View Court. The site was apparently occupied by Tolowa Indians well into the nineteenth century, as evidence by artifacts found at the site. The site has been subject to vandalism despite the efforts of local residents close to the site. One of the local residents has offered to build a home on the site as a means to protect it from further vandalism. In the letter Mr. Roop agrees this is a viable means of protecting a site of considerable religious significance. Also included in the folder are two cases from California case law which demonstrate the importance of correctly conducting an Environmental Impact Report (EIR). These cases specifically address the need to conduct an adequate archaeological review of sites before issuing construction permits, and to address criticisms registered in a draft EIR, in the Final EIR.

Folder 4: Staff Report Reservation Ranch

Accn: CILS Date: 1990

Description: The material in this folder pertains to a proposed subdivision of an 84 acre parcel of land in Del Norte County. The folder included a Staff Report of the Environmental Review Committee, which details how a Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared and reviewed by the Environmental Review Committee, the Coastal Planning Commission, Dept. of Fish and Game, Regional Water Quality Board, Cal Trans, and the Honwonquet Indian Council. The owner of the parcel, Reservation Ranch, originally proposed 62 lots on the property. The Report discusses in detail how Reservation Ranch is obligated to fulfill certain stipulations, included archaeological review, adequate testing of soils for water and sewer, and adequate protection of Indian access for fishing.

Also included in the folder is an approval document from Del Norte County of the Twin Rocks Subdivision, subject to certain conditions and obligation being met by the developer, Reservation Ranch. There is also a letter from Janet Eidsness, archaeological consultant for the Smith River Rancheria to the Del Norte County Planning Commission. In the letter Ms. Eidsness presents certain concerns of the

Rancheria to the Commission regarding particularly the need to be cognizant of the archaeological significance of two sites identified within the subject property. Ms. Eidsness provides certain steps that should be taken in constructing the proposed subdivision order to prevent or mitigate any damage to the sites in question.

Series 13: Demographic Data and Maps

Box 1 Located on: CD 13A

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Del Norte County Map and Population Estimates

Accn: CILS Date: 1992

Description: This folder includes a demographic study conducted by the California Dept. of Finance, providing estimates of the population of California counties for the period July, 1990 to July 1991. Also included is a Del Norte County map, an estimate of the County's labor force, and an open letter from the Director of the Crescent City Housing Authority describing the lack of affordable housing in Del Norte County.

Folder 2: 1933 Indian Census Roll

Accn: ITEPP Date: April 1, 1933

Description: Census of the Smith River Rancheria of the Hoopa Valley jurisdiction taken by Superintendent O.M. Boggess. The Census contains 115

names.

Series 14: Tolowa Nation Petition (1986)

Box 1 Located on: CD 14A contains Part I

Box 2 Located on: CD 14B contains Part II. Folders 1-3

CD 14C contains Part II, Folders 4-6 CD 14D contains Part II, Folder 7

Box 1 contains: Part I

Folder 1: Part I: History through 1906

Accn: SRR Date: up to 1906

Description: This index includes section titles:

- 1. Smith's Successors in Conquest
- 2. Last Free Days
- 3. The Early Treaties
- 4. The Tolowa as Prey
- 5. Tolowa Massacres Begin

- 6. 1853: Battery Point and Yontocket I: The Little Massacres
- 7. The Later Massacres
- 8. Fall, 1853: The Yontocket Massacre: When the Tolowa World Became Old
- 9. The Black Mow Hangings
- 10. New Year's Day, 1855: The Achulet Massacre
- 11. Gylish and Yutl-Hosch-Setl Negotiate a Treaty at Howonquet
- 12. January 1855: The Tolowa Attempt to Claim Crescent City
- 13. The Tolowas Become Reservation Indians
- 14. The Road to the Reservations
- 15. The Rouge River War
- 16. Troubles Until Removal
- 17. The Tolowas and the Rouge River War
- 18. Events Leading to Removal to the Klamath
- 19. The Tolowa/Klamath Treaty
- 20. At Klamath, the Tolowas Finally Rebel
- 21. Mixed Reviews of Klamath
- 22. The Night the Humboldt Settlers Went Berkerk: (Indian Island, January 25, 1860)
- 23. Greed on the Klamath
- 24. Civil War Era
- 25. Reservation Life After the Civil War
- 26. Substance Abuse and the Tolowa Community
- 27. The Diary of the Smith River Reservation
- 28. After the Smith River Reservation
- 29. Home to Stay: Allotments, Nelechundun, Smith River Rancheria and Elk Valley Rancheria

Folder 2: The Diary of the Smith River Reservation 1866-1868 (abridged version)

Accn: SRR Date: 1866-1868

Description: This is an abridged version of the diary in Series 3 of this archival collection. Please see description in that section.

Folder 3: Part III-IV: History 1906-Present

Accn: SRR

Date: 1906 – present

Description: The table of contents includes:

- 1. The Tolowas Dig In
- 2. 1900-1920: The Smith River and Elk Valley Rancherias, "B" Street; Prohibition, an the Roots of Social Recovery
- 3. The Tolowas in the Twenties: In the Dark Days of Prohibition
- 4. 1930-1940: IRA (1934), The Depression, and the Murmurings of War: a) The Tolowas' Renaissance, b) Tolowa Drinking and Social Unrest in the 1930s
- 5. 1940-1941: The End of the Depression, the Eve of the Way
- 6. Del Norte Indian Welfare Association
- 7. Del Norte Indian Welfare Association Records
- 8. Del Norte Indian Welfare Association Membership
- 9. The Rancherias at the Termination

- 10. Nelechundun Business Council
- 11. Tolowa Nation

Box 2 contains: Part II

Folder 1: Introductory Material

Accn: SRR

Date: Various, September 11, 1982 – May 4, 1986

Description: This folder contains Resolution 86-01, which gives permission to submit the Tolowa Nation Petition. It also includes the Constitution of the Tolowa Nation, and maps of the Smith River and Elk Valley Rancherias.

Folder 2: Maps

Accn: SRR
Date: Unknown

Description: Table of Contents includes:

- 1. Acknowledgements
- 2. Foreward for the Monographic Series of the Tolowa Nation of Indians
- 3. The Tolowa Nation's Case for Federal Acknowledgement in Brief
- 4. The Federal Status Clarification Project as an Interdisciplinary Effort: An Advocate's Statement of Purpose
- 5. The Issue of Credibility of Documentary Sources and of Tolowa Informants: Methodological Remedies

Folder 3: Part I: Ethnology of Material Culture and Society

Accn: SRR
Date: Unknown

- 1. Ethnology of Material Culture and Society
- 2. Linguistic Sources of "Huss," The Tolowa Language
- 3. The Tolowa Pacific-Northwest Coastal Environment: Its Topography Life Zones and Associates
- 4. The Tolowa Village System
- 5. The Tolowa and Their Neighbors
- 6. Population Estimates and Demographic Changes After 1850
- 7. The Tolowas' Resources
- 8. Tolowa Fish Foods and Capture Techniques
- 9. Fishing Equipment and Manufacture
- 10. Weirs, Nets, Fences, and Related Gear
- 11. Gutting, Cleaning, and Preserving
- 12. Netting Materials and Manufacture
- 13. Basket Traps
- 14. Harpoons, Spears, and Miscellaneous Fishing Paraphernalia and Methods
- 15. Ocean Fishing
- 16. Seals/ Sri'-sre-nus, Sea Lions/ Chon'-ding, and Sea Otters/ To-ning'-sre-no-go-tu'-ne
- 17. Whales/Cetaceae
- 18. Taboos, Rules, and Rituals
- 19. Tolowa Fishing Sites

- 20. Gill-Netting at Nelechundun: The State of California Terminates Aboriginal Tolowa Fishing Rights
- 21. Hunting Technology, and Land and River Animals
- 22. Miscellaneous Animals and Their Uses
- 23. Birds/Je'-Yos
- 24. Tolowa Pets
- 25. Discussion
- 26. Tolowa Floral Resources: Important Species, Their Gathering Processing, Storage and Use
- 27. Oaks and Acrons
- 28. Preparation of Miscellaneous Foods
- 29. Tolowa Gathering: Tolowa Clearing and Burning
- 30. Traditional Gathering Sites Still in Use
- 31. Tolowa Kinship
- 32. Tolowa Richmen
- 33. Singers and Dancers: 1900-1905
- 34. Singers and Dancers: 1951-1984
- 35. Appropriations and Fit of the Tolowas' Cultural and Political Institutions to the Resources and Challenges of Their Environment
- 36. Prestige in Wealth
- 37. The Life of the Tolowa Sweathouse
- 38. Home, Mothers, Daughters and Power
- 39. Tolowa Concepts of Currency, Wealth, Status and Power
- 40. Richmen and Riches
- 41. Indian Money as Currency
- 42. Education in Tolowa Values
- 43. Etiquette and Hygiene
- 44. Law, Fines, Courts, and Arbitration
- 45. Possession, Tenure, and Trespass
- 46. Indenture: A Peculiar Tolowa Institutution
- 47. Wars
- 48. Tolowa Technology: Tools, Weapons, and Artisanship
- 49. Tolowa Architecture and Furniture
- 50. Tolowa Clothing
- 51. Tolowa Cerimonial Dress
- 52. Tolowa Basketry
- 53. Tolowa Transportation
- 54. Tolowa Trading System
- 55. Trade as Cultural Institution
- 56. Tolowa Games

Folder 4: Part II: Genealogy

Accn: SRR
Date: Unknown

- 1. The Tolowa Towns
- 2. Discussion

- 3. Tolowa Mobility and Dislocation
- 4. Records of the Tolowa Community After the Decline of the Towns
- 5. The Tolowa Towns and Their People
- 6. Northern Settlements
- 7. Howonquet
- 8. Yontocket
- 9. Nelechundun
- 10. Bailey Ranch/ Do-ning-li
- 11. Southern Creeks and Towns
- 12. Saxton's Place/Ghe-Ghos-Li-Ghot
- 13. Towns Near Dr. Fine Bridge
- 14. Achulet
- 15. See'-dun'ning'-let-dun
- 16. Truleme and Mun-Sri'-me
- 17. Baby Town
- 18. Minor Sites on North Fork, Smith River
- 19. Middle Coastal Towns
- 20. Mesltl-tetl-tun (Pebble Beach)
- 21. Pine Grove/Crescent City Road
- 22. To-ging'-on' (Point St. George)
- 23. Doh-ting-dun'
- 24. Ta-at-tun
- 25. Southern Coastal Villages
- 26. Do'-Gest'-tl-t'so-dun
- 27. Requa
- 28. Inland Villages
- 29. Enchwo (Big Flat)
- 30. Musl-ye (Gasquet)
- 31. Don'-tre'-ging-tun
- 32. Hiouchi
- 33. Gus-chu'-me'/Redwood There
- 34. Meetenagatrul Tregil
- 35. Tltrus'-Me'
- 36. Miscellaneous Sites
- 37. Preliminary Tolowa Nation Base Roll

Folder 5: Part III: Ethnology of Pre-Contact Religion

Accn: SRR

Date: Unknown

- 1. The Tolowa Supernatural World
- 2. The Supreme Being
- 3. Helping Spirits
- 4. The Waugies: The People Who Came Before
- 5. The Tolowa Bestiary
- 6. Celestial Bodies and Weather
- 7. The Flood

- 8. Weather Doctoring
- 9. Tolowa Sacred Sites
- 10. The G-O Road Dispute
- 11. Prayers
- 12. Tolowa Shamanism (DI-Nun) and Power Questing (Dut'tl-sri)
- 13. Malpractice and Abuses
- 14. Shape-Shifting and Sorceries
- 15. Specializations in Medicine
- 16. Tolowa Theories of Disease and Etiology and Treatment
- 17. Human Anatomy
- 18. The First Salmon Ceremony
- 19. Other Harvest Ceremonies and Rites
- 20. Religious and Ceremonial Life: (Introduction: Early Accounts of The Nay Dosh)
- 21. The Problem of Bledsoe's Nay Dosh
- 22. Tolowa Social Ceremonies: The Cement of Social Relations
- 23. War and Death
- 24. Marriage
- 25. The Great Dances
- 26. The Puberty Dance
- 27. The Nay Dosh/World Renewal
- 28. The Persistence of the Dances and Their Associations
- 29. Discussion

Folder 6: Part IV: Ethnology of Religion After 1850

Accn: SRR
Date: Unknown

- 1. The Appeal of The Ghost Dance
- 2. The Effect of Conquest and Revivalistic Movements on Tolowa Eschatological Beliefs about Death and the Dead
- 3. The Tolowa's Ghost Dance
- 4. The Yurok Ghost Dance
- 5. The Shaker church and the Ghost Dance: Sources for Ideas About a Supreme Being
- 6. Absorption of the Ghost Dance into Tolowa Culture
- 7. The Tolowas and Temperance Missionaries: The Methodist Invasion
- 8. The Adaptation of Christian Influences into Tolowa Needs: Tolowa Calls for Temperance
- 9. Indian Shaker Church of California/Smith River
- 10. Indian Shaker Church of Washington V. Howonquet Community Association
- 11. Members of the Smith River Indian Shaker Church
- 12. Summary: Continuities: The Progressions from Naydosh Through the Ghost Dance, Methodists and Shakers

Folder 7: "Tolowa Indian Shakers and the Role of Prophecy at Smith River, California" by Al Logan Slagle

Accn: SRR Date: 1985

Description: This is an article written by Al Logan Slagle for the American

<u>Indian Quarterly.</u> It was published in the summer of 1985.

Series 15: Fort Terwah Journal

Box 1 Located on: CD 15A Accn: HSU Library Archives

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Fort Terwah Journal Date: Oct. 1861 –Jan. 1869

Description: This document is a journal compiled over the years 1861 through 1869, with a single entry for the year 1880. It appears to be authored by a Mr. Curtis, a volunteer in the military company led by a Captain Stuart. Curtis arrived at Fort Terwah from Calaveras County, CA in March, 1862, after having enlisted in the Army in October, 1861. The document is written in long hand, with a quill pen, and is illegible in certain sections.

Mr. Curtis describes a firefight with Indians in April, 1962, resulting in several Indians killed. The Indians are not clearly identified, but there may be a reference to "Hoopa." The location of the firefight is not specifically given. In the same year the author remarks that the rivers are "alive with fish." The author notes the Indians scoop them out and smoke them.

In August, 1862, there is a report of Indians "raising the devil," at Red Wood Camp and at Trinidad. The identity of the Indians is not provided. The detachment at Fort Terwah apparently responded, but the nature of the response is not given.

Through 1862-1863 there is much attention given to the resignations, desertions of certain men at the Fort. An account is given of various arrests and disciplinary actions taken against these individuals.

In Sept., 1864, there is a report of a conference between a group of Indians and their Chief (the identities of both are given, but are illegible) with certain personnel at the Fort. What topics or issues were discussed during the conference and why the conference was deemed necessary at this time was not provided.

In August, 1866, work was begun on the Del Norte Comstock copper mine. The journal's author participated in this work on various occasions.

In June-July, 1867, work began on the construction of a "road to the valley." This work was undertaken by the Alta (?) Company (the spelling is unclear). The company utilized the labor of several dozen "Chinamen."

In August, 1867 the journal's author apparently sold 1905 shares of stock in the Dardinelles (?) Co. (spelling unclear), after a delinquent assessment was rendered. It is not clear what entity made this assessment, nor against whom.

On Oct. 8, 1867, the journal's author took a trip during which he "took dinner on the Reservation." After the dinner the journal author rode into town with the Indian Agent. The name of the Agent is given but is illegible. It is not clear to which Reservation the reference is intended. One inference which might be made, given the location and date, is that the reference is to either the Smith River Reservation, or to the Hoopa Reservation, both of which were operating in this period.

In July, 1869, the journal author "hired an Indian" to help in the conveyance of heavy provisions on a trip. The Indian was dismissed after a portion of the trip was completed. In August. 1869, the journal author served as a witness in a court case apparently deciding an issue of theft. There is no indication this case had any links to Indian tribal members.

In Jan., 1869, at Big Bar on the Smith River, the journal author had cause to purchase an interest in tools and provisions. The amount of the purchase was \$45. The next, and last, entry in the journal is to record the birth of a girl (Mary) in May, 1880.

Series 16: ACCESS RESTRICTED

Jane Hostotlas Trust Documents and Finding Guide are located on two separate <u>RESTRICTED</u> CD-Roms.

Series: SWORP Collection

Located on:	CD SWORP-A	
Located on:	CD SWORP-B	
Located on:	CD SWORP-C1	contains Folder 1-19
	CD SWORP-C2	contains Folder 20-24
Located on:	CD SWORP-D1	contains Folder 1-9
	CD SWORP-D2	contains Folder 10-20
Located on:	CD SWORP-E	
Located on:	CD SWORP-F1	contains Folder 1-18
	CD SWORP-F2	contains Folder 19-29
Located on:	CD SWORP-G	
Located on:	CD SWORP-H	
Located on:	CD SWORP-I	
	Located on:	Located on: CD SWORP-B Located on: CD SWORP-C1 CD SWORP-C2 Located on: CD SWORP-D1 CD SWORP-D2 Located on: CD SWORP-E Located on: CD SWORP-F1 CD SWORP-F2 Located on: CD SWORP-G Located on: CD SWORP-H

Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Abbot 125

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 31, 1858

Description: Letter to George Gibbs with map and census of Coquille and adjoining tribes (census dated August 1861 in Gibbs' hand). 9 pages. Also Coquille vocabulary, 6 pages in Smithsonian printed outline and 6 page copy of

same in hand of George Gibbs.

Folder 2: Abbot 295

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 31, 1858

Description: Vocabulary of the Coquille Language

Folder 3: Anderson 123

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: February 24, 2858

Description: Concordance of the Athapascan languages; comparative vocabulary

Folder 4: Anderson 404

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 7, 1857

Description: Notes on Chinnok Jargon; vocabulary in hand of George Gibbs

Folder 5: Anonymous Archeology of OR 2428

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: undated

Description: Notes on the Atudship mounds near Florence, Washington County, Ore.

Folder 6: Barnett 1934 Books 1 & 2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934

Description: Notes on Indian Tribes of the Oregon Coast

Folder 7: Barnhardt 2360

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1857

Description: Census of Oregon Indians in 1857, including those of Astoria sub-Agency, Warm Springs Agency, Siletz Agency, Umpqua sub-Agency, Grande Ronde Agency.

Folder 8: Bissell 557

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: undated

Description: Coos Vocabulary

Folder 9: Bissell 873

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: September 1881

Description: Umpkwa vocabulary

Folder 10: Chase 3230

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: December 1873

Description: Description of stone and other implements found in them with some notes on existing tribes of the Oregon Coast. Pencil and Ink drawings included with the text.

Folder 11: Crook 85

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: June 8, 1960

Description: Crook's Tolowa vocabulary, and Lorenzo Hubbard's Tututni

vocabulary.

Folder 12: Crook 209

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1852 – 1861

Description: Klamath River Vocabularies

Folder 13: Curtin 269

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: May 1889

Description: Fifteen Untitled Karok Stories

Folder 14: Curtin 667

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: December 1888 – January 1889 Description: Miscellaneous Hupa Material

Folder 15: Curtin 847

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Dec. 16, 1888 & July 1889

Description: Ehnikan (Karok) Vocabulary June-July 1889

Folder 16: Curtin 1295

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1889

Description: 55 Shasta Myths

Folder 17: Curtin 1295, 2nd half

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: January and February 1889

Description: Shasta Myths

Folder 18: Curtin 1451

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1889

Description: Tcimariko vocabulary 1889

Folder 19: Curtin 1763

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1850-1980

Description: Wintu Words and Names

Box 2 contains:

Folder 1: Curtin 2170-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 2: Curtin 2170-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 3: Curtin 2170-3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: October 30, 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 4: Curtin 2170-4

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 5: Curtin 2170 –5

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 6: Curtin 2170-6

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 7: Curtin 2170-7

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 8: Curtin 2170-8

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 9: Curtin 2170-9

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Wintu Myths, Tales, and Words

Folder 10: Curtin 3805

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1880- 1890's

Description: Terms for Divisions of Time in Wintun, Hupa, and Yurok

Folder 11: Curtin 4750

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1880

Description: Way of Burying Dead Among Lower Klamath

Folder 12: Dorsey 391

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August – September 13, 1884

Description: Yaqunia and Alsi language notes

Folder 13: Dorsey 4800-360

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: undated

Description: Siletz verbs

Folder 14: Dorsey 4800-361

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Tabulation of the numbers of entries in the vocabularies recorded by

Dosey at Siletz Reservation, Oregon.

Folder 15: Dorsey 4800-362

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Notes relating to Dorsey's "The Gentile System of the Siletz Tribes." Includes: parts of text of published article; lists of villages and gentes in the vicinity of Siletz Agency (some appear to tally with published lists and some do not); misc. notes; sketch maps and diagrams as follows: "Diagram of the principal streams in the priscan habitats for the Siletz Tribes"; sketch of Takelma localities; "Map showing Athapascan villages in Oregon and California, according to Naltunnetunne, Alex Ross"; "map drawn according to directions of E'-ne-a'-ti, a Tututunne, by J. Owen Dorsey".

Folder 16: Dorsey 4800-363

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: December 30, 1884

Description: List of botanical specimens and plants names gained on the Siletz

Reservation.

Folder 17: Dorsey 4800-364

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: "A visit to the Siletz Agency"

Folder 18: Dorsey 4800-366

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: undated

Description: Sketch map of Alaska and the Northwest Coast, but map is missing

Folder 19: Dorsey 4800-367

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Comparative notes on Athapaskan Dialects

Folder 20: Dorsey 4800-368

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Modes of predication in the Arthapsan dialects of Oregon

Folder 21: Dorsey 4800-370

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Athapascan tribal divisions

Folder 22: Dorsey 4800-371

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1886

Description: Applegate/ Da-ku-be-te-de

Folder 23: Dorsey 4800-373

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Desciption: Galice Creek vocabulary and grammatical notes

Folder 24: Dorsey 4800-374

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Chasta Costa vocabulary

Box 3 contains:

Folder 1: Dorsey 4800-375

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August, October 1884

Description: Coquille at Siletz Reservation

Folder 2: Dorsey 4800-376

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Chetco at the Siletz Reservation

Folder 3: Dorsey 4800-377

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Mikuntunne

Folder 4: Dorsey 4800-379

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 1884

Description: Tcemi tunni, Chinook

Folder 5: Dorsey 4800-382

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tututni language

Folder 6: Dorsey 4800-383

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tututni language

Folder 7: Dorsey 4800-384

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tututni language

Folder 8: Dorsey 4800-385

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Teeme story of creation

Folder 9: Dorsey 4800-386

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Sept. 2, 1884

Description: Athapascan at Euchre Creek, OR language

Folder 10: Dorsey 4800-387

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 29, 1884

Description: Sixes Creek Athapascans language materials

Folder 11: Dorsey 4800-388

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Naltunne River Athapascans

Folder 12: Dorsey 4800-390

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1886

Descriptions: Siuslaw

Folder 13: Dorsey 4800-391

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Alsi, Yaquina at the Siletz Reservation

Folder 14: Dorsey 4800-392

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Siuslaw, Alsea

Folder 15: Dorsey 4800-393 and 394

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Yaquina

Folder 16: Dorsey 4800-395

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: October 24, 1884

Descriptions: Mu-luk, Northside of the Coquilee River at the Siletz Reservation

Folder 17: Dorsey 4800-396

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: October 24, 1884

Description: Kusan, Lower Coquille

Folder 18: Dorsey 4800-397

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Takelma

Folder 19: Drucker 4516-23

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given Description: Alsea

Folder 20: Drucker 4516-78 vol.1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934

Description: Coos

Folder 21: Drucker 4516-78 vol. 2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934
Description: Coos

Folder 22: Drucker 4516-78 vol. 3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934 Description: Coos

Folder 23: Drucker 4516-78 vol. 4

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934

Description: Coos

Folder 24: Drucker 4516-78 vol. 5

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934

Description: Coos

Box 4 contains:

Folder 1: Drucker 4516-79 vol.1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1934

Description: Coos

Folder 2: Drucker 4516-79 vol.2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tolowa – mostly language materials, but there are notes on living

conditions in a journal format

Folder 3: Drucker 4516-79 vol.3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given Description: Tolowa

Folder 4: Drucker 4516-81

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tolowa – geography (maps) and language materialsm

Folder 5: Drucker 4516-86

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: July 11, 1934

Description: Coos, Umpqua, Siuslaw

Folder 6: Everette 78

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1882-1883

Description: Tututene, Oregon Tribes Folder 7: Everette 78, 2nd half

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1882-1883

Description: Tututene, Oregon Tribes

Folder 8: Everette 4047

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given Description: Tututene

Folder 9: Frachtenberg 330

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given **Description: Coos** Folder 10: Frachtenerg 1724

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 1900

Description: Coos at Siletz Reservation

Folder 11: Frachtenberg 1726

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Coos at Siletz, OR

Folder 12: Frachtenberg 1733

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tribes of Oregon and Washington

Folder 13: Frachtenberg 1821

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 **Description: Coos**

Folder 14: Frachtenberg 1914 A-S

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given **Description: Coos**

Folder 15: Frachtenberg 1914 S-Y

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given **Description: Coos** Folder 16: Frachtenberg 2021

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Coos, Siuslaw, Alsea

Folder 17: Frachtenberg 2516

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1910 Description: Alsea

Folder 18: Frachtenberg 2518 vol.1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909

Description: Coos in Acme, OR

Folder 19: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909

Description: Coos in Acme, OR

Folder 20: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909

Description: Coos in Acme, OR

Box 5 contains:

Folder 1: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 4

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 2: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 5

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 3: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 6

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 4: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 7

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 5: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 8

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 6: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. 9

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos Folder 7: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. misc. 1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909 Description: Coos

Folder 8: Frachtenberg 2518 vol. misc. 2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: Summer 1909
Description: Coos
O: Frachtenberg 2625

Folder 9: Frachtenberg 2625

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given Description: Siuslaw

Folder 10: Frachtenberg 2919 vol. 1-3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given Description: Siuslaw

Folder 11: Gatschet 706-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 1877 Description: Shasti Folder 12: Gatschet 706-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 1877 Description: Shasti

Folder 13: Gatschet 845

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: January 1878

Description: Karok Vocabularies

Folder 14: Gatschet 1386-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 12, 1882

Description: Manuscripts – Kalapuya, Iroquois

Folder 15: Gatschet 1386-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August 25, 1882

Description: Manuscripts August 25, 1882

Folder 16: Gatschet 3436

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: December 1875

Description: Pomo, Hupa, Nez Perce, Klikitat Vocabularies

Box 6 contains:

Folder1: Gibbs 128

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1851-1852

Description: H'opa vocabulary

Folder 2: Gibbs 130

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1852

Description: Vocabularies of the Aliquah languages (Yurok, Karok, Hopa,

Klamath, Trinity)

Folder 3: Gibbs 174

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: List of Athapascan vocabularies and their authors

Folder 4: Gibbs 196 – A

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: observations of the coast tribes of Oregon. Notes from Lieutenants

Crook and Hazen Folder 5: Gibbs 196 – B

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1854-1857

Description: observations of the Klamath River and Humboldt Bay,

accompanying vocabularies of their languages

Folder 6: Gibbs 197 A and B

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1855

Description: Chinook vocabulary

Folder 7: Gibbs 886

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1850-1980

Description: notes on the problems of studying language relationships, with

examples from Oregon tribes.

Folder 8: Gibbs 954

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Weitspek (Pohlik Klamath) and Hopah Dictionary with notes on

"Redwood Indians" and "Mad River and Bay Indians. Also includes Hopah vocabulary.

0 II 11 1011

Folder 9: Haller 1211

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: July 21, 1885

Description: One letter to George Gibbs, and one to Col. James W. Ripley.

Happer desribes the Coast Tribes of Oregon and those along Columbia River.

Folder 10: Hamilton 87

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 1856

Description: Haynargger vocabulary

Folder 11: Milhau 191-A

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 1856

Description: Coos, Umpqua, Siuslaw, Alseya, Yakona, Klickitat

Folder 12: Milhau 191-B

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none giver Description: Coos

Folder 13: Milhau 193-B

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1856

Description: Two copies by George Gibbs of John J. Milhau's Upper Umqua

vocabularies

Folder 14: Milhau 955-A

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 4, 1856

Description: Languages of all coast Indians between Cape Code and Cape

Foulweather and to the Alseya and Yakoner rivers.

Folder 15: Milhau 958

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: November 14, 1858 Description: Umpua and Siuslaw

Folder 16: Powell 1880

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1880

Description: Study of Indian Languages

Folder 17: Powers 220

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1870

Description: Comparative Vocabulary of Hupa and Wailaki 1870's

Folder 18: Powers 1306

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1877

Description: Five Pencil Sketches; four with tatoo designs

Folder 19: Powers 1326

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1877

Description: Words and Music to California (Karok) Indian Songs 1877

Folder 20: Powers 3122

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date:1876

Description: Estimates of the Aboriginal Population 1876-1877

Folder 21: Rigsby 4667

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: March 27, 1963 Description: Coquille Folder 22: Roehrig 155

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Umpqua, Upper Umpqua, Willopah

Folder 23: St. Clair 1277-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1903 and 1904

Description: Coos, Takilman

Folder 24: St. Clair 1277-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1903 and 1904

Description: Coos, Takilman

Folder 25: St. Clair 1822 vol.1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1903

Description: Coos linguistic material

Folder 26: St. Clair 1822 vol. 2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1905

Description: Coos linguistic material

Folder 27: Stone 1194

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: January 22, 1877

Description: List of Names of Indians of McCloud River, California

Folder 28: Turner 136

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Comparative vocabulary of eleven Athapaskan languages

Folder 29: Waterman 3183

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: September 30, 1856

Description: This folder contains maps of Tolowa villages and various

photographs of Crescent City and Tolowa people.

Box 7 contains:

Folder 1: Hoopa Valley Allotments SC 147 B. 142-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1893-1894

Description: Letters to COIA

Folder 2: Hoopa Valley Allotments SC 147 B. 142-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1894-1895

Description: Letters to COIA

Folder 3: Hoopa Valley Allotments SC 147 B. 142-3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1899-1903

Description: Letters to COIA

Correspondence with BIA concerning Hoopa Valley Reservation survey and

Hoopa Valley Reservation School

Folder 4: Hoopa Valley Allotments SC 147 B. 143

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1895-1899

Description: Letters to COIA

Folder 5: CA, Hoopa Valley Agency Conditions 1929

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1929-1933

Description: various documents from national archives

Folder 6: CA, Round Valley Agency Conditions 1929

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1929-1932

Description: various documents from national archives

Folder 7: Oregon Maps

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none specified

Description: various maps, all of Oregon

Oversize Box 1 contains:

Folder 1: Anonymous 127

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1851, 1852

Description: Comparison of Three Hupa Vocabularies

Folder 2: Azpell 83

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1870

Description: Hupa and Klamath Vocabularies

Folder 3: Curtin 709

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1885

Descrition: Vocabulary July 13, 1885 (Yreka)

Folder 4: Curtin 1442

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1889

Descrition: Hupa Vocabulary December 1888-January 1889

Folder 5: Curtin 1450

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1888-1889

Description: Karok Vocabulary June and July, 1889

Folder 6: Curtin 1451

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1889

Description: Chimariko 1889

Folder 7: Curtin 1459

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1889

Description: Pulikla Vocabulary, January and February 1889

Oversize Box 2 contains:

Folder 1: Curtin 2063

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Hupa vocabulary December 1888-January 1889

Folder 2: Curtin 3805

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Hupa vocabulary

Folder 3: Dorsey 4800-365

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1890

Description: Comparative Notes on Dialects of Siletz Reservation

Folder 4: Dorsey 4800-369

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1884

Description: Notes on Verbs in Tututni

Folder 5: Dorsey 4800-372

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Athapascan Language notes

Folder 6: Dorsey 4800-381

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Tutu Vocabulary: Siletz Reservation

Folder 7: Dorsey 4800-388

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date:1884

Description: Naltunnetunne Dialect

Folder 8: Everette 225

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: June 22, 1897

Description: Literal Translations and Names of Oregon Tribes

Folder 9: Gatschet 845

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1878

Description: Karok Vocabulary

Folder 10: Gatschet 3436-1

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1846, 1875

Description: Comparative Vocabularies of West Coast

Folder 11: Gatschet 3436-2

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1846, 1875

Description: Comparative Vocabularies of West Coast

Folder 12: Gatschet 3436-3

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1846, 1875

Description: Comparative Vocabularies of West Coast

Folder 13: Gatschet 3436-4

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: 1846, 1875

Description: Comparative Vocabularies of West Coast

Folder 14: Gibbs 552-A, B, C

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: August

Description: SugustMap of Klamath and Trinity Rivers

Sketch map of Klamath and Trinity Rivers area with trails and distances added.

Folder 15: Powers 223

Accn: University of Oregon, SWORP collection

Date: none given

Description: Hupa and Wailaki Vocabulary